German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited ABN 75 001 428 968

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

ABN 75 001 428 968

Contents

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

	Page
Financial Statements	
Directors' Report	1
Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001	7
Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income	8
Statement of Financial Position	9
Statement of Changes in Equity	10
Statement of Cash Flows	11
Notes to the Financial Statements	12
Directors' Declaration	27
Independent Audit Report	28
Disclaimer	31
Detailed Statement of Comprehensive Income	32

ABN 75 001 428 968

Directors' Report

31 December 2022

The directors present their report on German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited for the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

Information on directors

The names of the office holders during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

Dr. J. Goennemann Chair (until May 2022)

Ms. R. Lee Chair (appointed in May 2022)

Prof. Bronwyn Fox President

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:

Dr. W. Babeck Director from May 2016 until May 2022

Qualifications Degree in Law (admitted as solicitor in Germany, England and Wales)

Experience Partner Buse Heberer Fromm

Mr. H. Blankenstein Director since May 2022

Qualifications MBA

Experience CEO and Founder, Unleash live

Ms. T. Dietterich Director since January 2018

Qualifications Masters (Applied Linguistics and Cultural Studies / International Law), Bachelor

(Linguistics and Cultural Studies, Translation and Interpreting)

Experience CEO of 2M Language Services

Mr. R. Drohn Director since May 2017

Qualifications Master's Degree, International Tax

Experience Executive Director, Tax Centre for Excellence, Ernst & Young

Dr. J. Goennemann Director from May 2014 until May 2022

Qualifications PhD, Master of Economics, Bachelor of Business

Experience Managing Director, Advanced Manufacturing Growth Centre Ltd

Ms. R. Jessop Director since May 2022

Qualifications Masters in Dairy Science & Technology

Experience Managing Director, Pilz Australia and New Zealand

Mr. R. Koenig Director since May 2022

Qualifications Masters of Business and Technology Experience Managing Director, Weidmueller

Ms. R. Lee Director since May 2018
Qualifications Bachelor of Science

Experience Managing Director of Merck Pty Ltd

Ms G. Overell Director since November 2020

Qualifications Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of Laws (LL.B.)

Experience Chairperson of Victorian Opera

ABN 75 001 428 968

Directors' Report

31 December 2022

Information on directors (continued)

Dr. Gabriele Rose Director since July 2022

Qualifications Master of Law

Experience Executive Director of German-Australian Chamber of Industry and Commerce

Mr. P. Sansom Director from May 2018 until January 2023
Experience Managing Director of Volkswagen Group

Mr. C. Freiherr von Spesshardt Director from May 2020 until July 2022

Qualifications Master of Science

Experience Executive Director of German-Australian Chamber of Industry and Commerce

Ms. S. Whetton Director from May 2015 until May 2022

Qualifications Bachelor of Economics / Law

Experience Partner at Colin, Biggers and Paisley

Ms. K. Zwissler Director since November 2020

Qualifications Masters (English & Postcolonial Literature, International History)

Experience CEO, SAP Australian User Group

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Principal activities

The German-Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerice Limited (AHK Australien) is a membership organisation and provides an extensive networking platform. The Chamber offers a variety of networking and content-driven functions to service the different interests and needs of our members. The events include high profile luncheons and receptions, company visits and delegations, business seminars and workshops.

The Chamber also provides a range of consulting services from tailor-made address lists to detailed market studies and business partner searches, offering advice on setting up business, customs regulations and finding suitable employees for starting a new office. Further, the Chamber hosts and welcomes trade missions and business delegations each year and organises industry conferences to enhance the dialogue and business opportunities of both nations.

The Chamber offers platforms for our members to engage with each other via different online communication media such as the monthly newsletter, the AHK Insider, which features updates on events, member and industry news. The quarterly magazine, Accelerate, provides topical articles on the latest developments in the German and Australian economy as well as highlights major Chamber events and activities. The G'Day Germany newsletter (in German) updates our German members and stakeholders about business developments and opportunities in Australia.

Short and long term objectives of the company

AHK Australien aims to be a trusted partner, enabler and accelerator of sustainable business relations between Australia and Germany.

Strategy for achieving the objectives

AHK Australien achieves these objectives by creating value for its members, customers and government stakeholders by increasing bilateral business opportunities and developing growth initiatives in the strategic overlap of both countries.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Directors' Report

31 December 2022

Strategy for achieving the objectives (continued)

The Chamber is committed to bringing German & Australian businesses closer together to shape a better future and is caring about its people and its members/customers. The Chamber strives to enable, build trust, and deliver expertise and achieves this by being professional, accountable, and reliable.

How principal activities assisted in achieving the objectives

All events/projects and consulting services have direct relevance for developing and strengthening German-Australian trade, investment and cooperation between governments.

Performance measures

The following measures are used within the Company to monitor performance:

- Budgets and forecasts are developed by management in co-operation with the departments. In order to achieve
 overall financial goals, budgets are prepared for each project, event or publication and aggregated to departmental
 budget plans. Budgeted and actual figures are evaluated on a quarterly basis and presented to the Finance
 Committee.
- Quarterly performance and the overall annual objectives for the Chamber and their progress are presented to the board. This is monitored in more detail in each regular staff meeting throughout the year. If required further courses of action are implemented to achieve objectives.

Members' guarantee

The German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the company, the amount capable of being called up from each member and any person or association who ceased to be a member in the year prior to the winding up, is limited to \$ 20 for members that are corporations and \$ 20 for all other members, subject to the provisions of the company's constitution.

At 31 December 2022 the collective liability of members was \$6,500 (2021: \$7,000).

ABN 75 001 428 968

Directors' Report

31 December 2022

Meetings of directors

During the financial year, 4 meetings of directors (including committees of directors) were held. Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

	Directors' Meetings	
	Number eligible to attend	Number attended
Dr. W. Babeck	2	2
Mr. H. Blankenstein	2	1
Mr. R. Drohn	4	4
Dr. J. Goennemann	2	2
Ms. S. Whetton	2	2
Ms. T. Dietterich	4	4
Ms. R. Lee	4	4
Mr. P. Sansom	4	3
Ms G. Overell	4	4
Mr. R. Koenig	2	2
Mr. C. Freiherr von Spesshardt	2	2
Ms. K. Zwissler	4	4
Ms. R. Jessop	2	2
Dr. G. Rose	2	2

Operating results

The surplus of the Company amounted to \$99,929 (2021: deficit of \$ (4,520)).

Review of operations

The new membership packages of the AHK Australien were introduced in 2021 and fully implemented in 2022. They are covered by a basic membership (corporate), cluster partner and a platinum partnership and show a clear price increase to reflect the added value. The new membership packages have been very well received by our members and the majority shows significantly greater commitment associated with closer exchanges. This has helped the AHK to respond more specifically to the ideas of its members.

Our event calendar 2022 included primarily face-to-face events with the headline event, the Growth Summit which took place in March 2022. It served as a platform to introduce and to showcase the 4 industry clusters – Energy, Health, Mining & Resources and Food & Beverage. The AHK also focused on working groups among its members which are geared towards long-term cooperation and to promote the exchange of knowledge and networking. In Quarter 4 2022, the AHK introduced CFO, HR and Marketing Circles in Sydney and Melbourne allowing senior managers to engage and to discuss current topics openly. In addition, the AHK continued to organise high profile luncheons and receptions, company visits, business seminars, webinars and workshops.

The Chamber organised a delegation to Gladstone in Queensland, a critical minerals delegation to Western Australia and a Hydrogen conference in Adelaide.

The Chamber's governmental affairs work continued in 2022, particularly during the ongoing negotiations for the Australia-EU Free Trade Agreement which is due to conclude in 2023.

There was also a change in management. Dr. Gabriele Rose succeeded Christoph von Spesshardt, who was at the helm of AHK Australien since May 2020 and returned to Germany in July 2022. Dr. Rose was no stranger to AHK Australien, as she managed its Health Industry Cluster since the beginning of April 2022. Born in Neumuenster, near Hamburg, and a lawyer

ABN 75 001 428 968

Directors' Report

31 December 2022

Review of operations (continued)

by profession, she also brought a wealth of experience in international business leadership. Dr. Rose is very familiar with the network of German Chambers of Commerce, having worked at the Association of German Chambers (DIHK) in Berlin and as one of the Managing Directors of the Chamber of Commerce in Hamburg, coordinating public-private activities and stakeholder management.

Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

Future developments and results

Apart from the matters discussed elsewhere in this report, since the end of the financial year there have been no developments in the operations of the company, which are not finalised at the date of this report, which may affect the results of the company in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2022.

Environmental issues

The Company's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations under a law of the Commonwealth or of a state or territory of Australia.

Proceedings on behalf of company

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

During or since the end of the financial year, the company has paid premiums to insure all of the directors against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred by them in defending any legal proceedings arising our of their conduct while acting in the capacity of director of the Company, other than conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the Company. No indemnities have been given or insurance premium paid, during or since the end of the financial year, for any person who is or has been an auditor of the Company.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Directors' Report

31 December 2022

Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the *Corporations Act 2001*, for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been received and can be found on page 7 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Director:

Ms. R. Lee

Dated 04 April 2023

ABN 75 001 428 968



Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited

We declare that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2022, there have been:

- (i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the *Corporations Act 2001* in relation to the audit; and
- (ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Felsers

Steven Zabeti Partner

04 April 2023

Sydney

ABN 75 001 428 968

Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

		2022	2021
	Note	\$	\$
Revenue	4	2,289,402	1,433,547
Finance income	5	13,857	1,364
Other income	4	1,536,553	947,514
Employee benefits expense		(2,423,158)	(1,648,416)
Depreciation and amortisation expense		(237,293)	(238,171)
Trade fairs and functions expense		(316,842)	(58,174)
Service expenses		(129,516)	(27,075)
Travel expenses		(194,807)	(42,543)
IT expenses		(78,958)	(64,555)
Other expenses		(337,488)	(252,872)
Finance expenses	5 _	(21,821)	(55,139)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year	_	99,929	(4,520)
Other comprehensive income for the year	_	-	
Total comprehensive income for the year	=	99,929	(4,520)

ABN 75 001 428 968

Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2022

	Note	2022 \$	2021 \$
ASSETS			
CURRENT ASSETS			
Cash and cash equivalents	7	1,223,620	1,186,645
Trade and other receivables	8	40,114	137,841
Other financial assets Other assets	11	57,057	56,915
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	'' -	84,288	81,868
	_	1,405,079	1,463,269
NON-CURRENT ASSETS		47.070	47.070
Other financial assets	40	47,872	47,872 54,404
Property, plant and equipment Right-of-use assets	10 12	37,097 245,564	54,404 450,170
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS	-		
	_	330,533	552,446
TOTAL ASSETS	_	1,735,612	2,015,715
LIABILITIES CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Trade and other payables	13	465,036	440,576
Lease liabilities	12	241,547	219,611
Short-term provisions	14	145,429	108,907
Employee benefits	15	99,099	121,287
Contract liabilities	9 _	180,556	391,535
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES	_	1,131,667	1,281,916
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Lease liabilities	12 15	50,356	291,903
Employee benefits TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	15 _	26,365	14,601
	_	76,721	306,504
TOTAL LIABILITIES	_	1,208,388	1,588,420
NET ASSETS	_	527,224	427,295
EQUITY			
Accumulated surplus	_	527,224	427,295
	_	527,224	427,295
TOTAL EQUITY	_	527,224	427,295

ABN 75 001 428 968

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2022

	Accumulated Surplus	Total
	\$	\$
Balance as at 1 January 2022	427,295	427,295
Surplus for the year	99,929	99,929
Balance at 31 December 2022	527,224	527,224
2021		
	Accumulated Surplus	Total
	\$	\$
Balance as at 1 January 2021	431,815	431,815
Deficit for the year	(4,520)	(4,520)
Balance at 31 December 2021	427,295	427,295

ABN 75 001 428 968

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

	Note	2022 \$	2021 \$
	Note	Ψ	Ψ
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			
Receipts from customers and grants		4,160,874	2,394,467
Payments to suppliers and employees		(3,867,867)	(1,723,319)
Interest received		1,780	1,364
Interest paid	_	(21,821)	(32,847)
Net cash provided by operating activities	_	272,966	639,665
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		//	(= aaa)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	_	(16,380)	(7,380)
Net cash used in investing activities	_	(16,380)	(7,380)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:			
Payment of finance lease liabilities	_	(219,611)	(202,200)
Net cash used in financing activities	_	(219,611)	(202,200)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held		36,975	430,085
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year	_	1,186,645	756,560
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year	7 =	1,223,620	1,186,645

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The financial report covers German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited as an individual entity. German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited is a not-for-profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The functional and presentation currency of German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited is Australian dollars

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 04 April 2023.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.

1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures and the *Corporations Act 2001*.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on historical costs modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and are consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Income Tax

The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows:

- 1. Identify the contract with the customer
- 2. Identify the performance obligations
- 3. Determine the transaction price
- 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
- 5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred

Generally the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds closely to the timing of satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a difference, it will result in the recognition of a receivable, contract asset or contract liability.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

None of the revenue streams of the Company have any significant financing terms as there is less than 12 months between receipt of funds and satisfaction of performance obligations.

Specific revenue streams

The revenue recognition policies for the principal revenue streams of the Company are:

Provision of Professional Services

The Company earns revenue from provision of professional services. Revenue is recognised over time in the accounting period when services are rendered.

Fee arrangements include fixed fee arrangements, unconditional fee for service arrangements ("time and materials") and variable fee arrangements.

For fixed fee arrangements, revenue is recognised based on the stage of completion with reference to the actual services provided as a proportion of the total services expected to be provided under the contract. The stage of completion is tracked on a contract by contract basis using a milestone-based approach.

Estimates of revenues (including interim billing), costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increase or decrease in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

In fee for service contracts, revenue is recognised up to the amount of fees that the Company is entitled to invoice for services performed to date based on contracted rates.

The Company estimates fees for variable fee arrangements using a most likely amount approach on a contract by contract basis. Management makes a detailed assessment of the amount of revenue expected to be received and variable consideration is included in revenue only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal.

The Company has determined that no significant financing component exists in respect of the professional services revenue streams since the period between when the Company transfers a promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

A receivable in relation to these services is recognised when a bill has been invoiced, as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Revenue and other income (continued)

Statement of financial position balances relating to revenue recognition

Contract assets and liabilities

Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in the contract, the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the customer before the customer pays consideration or the before payment is due, the Company presents the contract as a contract asset, unless the Company's rights to that amount of consideration are unconditional, in which case the Company recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer prior to the entity transferring a good or service to the customer, the Company presents the contract as a contract liability.

Other income

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.

(c) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired for significantly less than fair value have been recorded at the acquisition date fair value.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to the Company, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Plant and Equipment 10% - 33.33% Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 10% - 33.33%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

(e) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those measured at:

amortised cost

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

- the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

The Company's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets:

financial assets measured at amortised cost

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

- the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse to the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial assets is more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

Trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which uses an estimation of lifetime expected credit losses. The Company has determined the probability of non-payment of the receivable and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in finance expense. Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is written off against the associated allowance.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Where the Company renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flow are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the expected credit loss model in AASB 9. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Company comprise trade payables.

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the Company determines whether there is any evidence of an impairment indicator for non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless of indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cashgenerating unit (CGU) is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment loss

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

This involves an assessment of whether:

- The contract involves the use of an identified asset this may be explicitly or implicitly identified within the agreement. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right then there is no identified asset.
- The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use.
- The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset i.e. decision making rights in relation to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

Lessee accounting

The non-lease components included in the lease agreement have been separated and are recognised as an expense as incurred.

At the lease commencement, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The lease term includes extension periods where the Company believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises of the lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Company's incremental borrowing rate is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The lease liability is remeasured whether there is a lease modification, change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI) or a change in the Company's assessment of lease term.

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the remeasurement or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Exceptions to lease accounting

The Company has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

(k) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the spot rate on the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:

- Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
- Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
- Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value are translated using the rate at the date when fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition or in prior reporting periods are recognised through profit or loss, except where they relate to an item of other comprehensive income or whether they are deferred in equity as qualifying hedges.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

Key estimates - provisions

Provisions are measured at management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These estimates are made taking into account a range of possible outcomes and will vary as further information is obtained.

Key estimates - useful lives of assets

The company determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant and equipment. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than previously estimated, or technically obsolete and non-strategic assets that have bee abandoned will be written off or written down.

4 Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from continuing operations

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Revenue from contracts with customers		
- member subscriptions	947,350	526,662
- publication revenue	1,309	9,554
- service fees	1,020,991	708,069
- functions	269,418	88,594
- other revenue	50,334	100,668
Total Revenue	2,289,402	1,433,547
	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Other Income		
- grants	1,536,553	947,514
Total Other Income	1,536,553	947,514

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

5 Finance Income and Expenses

	Finance income		
		2022	2021
		\$	\$
	Interest income		
	- Assets measured at amortised cost	1,780	1,364
	Gain on exchange differences	12,077	
	Total finance income	13,857	1,364
	Finance expenses		
	Titulioc expenses	2022	2021
		\$	\$
	Interest expense on lease liabilities	21,821	32,847
	Loss on exchange differences	-	22,292
	Total finance expenses	21,821	55,139
6	Result for the Year		
	The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:		
		2022	2021
		\$	\$
	Other expenses:		
	Superannuation contributions	177,211	141,687
	Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment	92	-
7	Cash and Cash Equivalents		
		2022	2021
		\$	\$
	Cash at bank and in hand	1,218,568	1,182,874
	Other cash and cash equivalents	5,052	3,771
		1,223,620	1,186,645
8	Trade and Other Receivables		
		2022	2021
		\$	\$
	CURRENT		
	Trade receivables	29,270	137,841
	GST receivable	10,844	-
	Total current trade and other receivables	40,114	137,841

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

9 Contract Balances

Contract assets and liabilities

The Company has r	ecognised the following	na contract liabilities from	m contracts with customers:
The Company has r	ecoanisea me ioliowii	io contract habililes from	m contracts with customers.

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
CURRENT		
Deferred membership	180,556	205,945
Deferred income events	-	106,840
Deferred income publications	-	250
Deferred income projects	-	78,500
Total current contract liabilities	180,556	391,535

10 Property, plant and equipment

Accumulated depreciation (114,333) (101,27	2022 2021	21
At cost 147,258 150,94 Accumulated depreciation (114,333) (101,27)	\$ \$;
Accumulated depreciation (114,333) (101,27		
	147,258 150,9	50,945
Total plant and equipment 32 925 49 66	(114,333) (101,2	01,276)
10tal plant and equipment 32,323 49,00	32,925 49,6	49,669
Furniture, fixtures and fittings		
At cost 37,537 35,22	37,537 35,2	35,224
Accumulated depreciation (33,365) (30,48	(33,365) (30,4)	(30,489)
Total furniture, fixtures and fittings 4,172 4,73	4,172 4,7	4,735
Total plant and equipment 37,097 54,40	37,097 54,4	54,404
Total property, plant and equipment <u>37,097</u> 54,40	54, <u>4</u>	54,404

11 Other Assets

Other Assets	2022 \$	2021 \$
CURRENT Prepayments	84,288	71,888
Other asset		9,980
	84,288	81,868

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

12 Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company has leases over a range of assets including buildings and IT equipment.

The Company has chosen not to apply AASB 16 to leases of intangible assets.

Information relating to the leases in place and associated balances and transactions are provided below.

Terms and conditions of leases

Buildings

The Company leases buildings for their corporate offices, the leases are generally between 3 - 5 years and some of the leases include a renewal option.

The corporate office leases contain an annual pricing mechanism based on a fixed percentage increase of 4% at each anniversary of the lease inception.

IT Equipment

The Company leases IT equipment with lease terms of 5 years, the lease payments are fixed during the lease term. The IT equipment lease contains an annual pricing mechanism based on a fixed rate of 5% at each anniversary of the lease inception.

Leases for IT equipment are generally considered to be for low value assets, except for significant items such as photocopiers.

Right-of-use assets

	Buildings & IT Equipment \$	Total \$
Year ended 31 December 2022		
Balance at beginning of year	450,170	450,170
Amortisation of right-of-use assets	(204,606)	(204,606)
Balance at end of year	245,564	245,564

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

12 Leases (continued)

Lease liabilities

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

	< 1 year \$	1 - 5 years \$	> 5 years	Total undiscounted lease liabilities \$	Lease liabilities included in this Statement Of Financial Position
	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ	Ψ
2022 Lease liabilities	251,225	50,858	-	302,083	291,903
2021 Lease liabilities	241,432	302,083	-	543,515	511,514

Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts recognised in the statement of surplus or deficit and other comprehensive income relating to leases where the Company is a lessee are shown below:

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Interest expense on lease liabilities	(21,821)	(32,847)

13 Trade and Other Payables

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
CURRENT		
Trade payables	15,059	18,308
GST payable	-	3,788
Accrued expense	287,220	285,599
Other payables	162,757	132,881
	465,036	440,576

14 Provisions

CURRENT		
Provisions	145,429	108,907

2021

\$

2022

\$

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

15 Employee Benefits

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Current liabilities		
Long service leave	-	44,453
Annual leave	99,099	76,834
	99,099	121,287
	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Non-current liabilities		
Long service leave	26,365	14,601

16 Members' Guarantee

The Company is incorporated under the *Corporations Act 2001* and is a Company limited by guarantee. If the Company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of \$ 20 each towards meeting any outstandings and obligations of the Company. At 31 December 2022 the number of members was 325 (2021: 350).

17 Key Management Personnel Remuneration

The total remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Company is \$ 1,275,904 (2021: \$ 627,410). The increase is due to the gross representation of the Executive Director's personnel costs and extension of the key management team.

18 Auditors' Remuneration

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Remuneration of the auditor of the Company, Felsers, for:		
- auditing of the financial statements	10,000	10,504
- other services	650	600
Total	10,650	11,104

Other services relate to compliance work, including assistance with the fringe benefits tax return.

19 Contingencies

German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited had the following contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

Bank guarantees relate to bonds for rental properties. Estimates of the potential financial effect of contingent liabilities that may become payable are \$95,744 (2021: \$95,744).

ABN 75 001 428 968

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

20 Related Parties

The Company's main related parties are as follows:

The expense for German Trade and Invest (GTAI) are included in the rental costs and employee benefit expenses. Corresponding income received from the GTAI was \$156,352 (31 December 2021: \$149,885).

All companies listed under "Information on Directors" on page 1 and 2 are director related entities. Each of these companies is a fully paid up member at 31 December 2022.

Key management personnel - refer to Note 17.

21 Events after the end of the Reporting Period

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

22 Statutory Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the company is:
German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited
Level 6, 8 Spring Street
Sydney NSW 2000

ABN 75 001 428 968

Directors' Declaration

The directors of the Company declare that:

- 1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 8 to 26, are in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001* and:
 - a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards Simplified Disclosures; and
 - b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2022 and of the performance for the year ended on that date of the Company.
- 2. In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director

Ms. R. Lee

Saherle

Dated 04 April 2023



Independent Audit Report to the members of German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited (the Company), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the statement of surplus or deficit and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Company is in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001*, including:

- (i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2022 and of its financial performance for the year ended; and
- (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards Simplified Disclosures and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report* section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001* and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 *Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)* (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the *Corporations Act 2001*, which has been given to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures and the *Corporations Act 2001* and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

Accru⁺

German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited

Independent Audit Report to the members of German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design
 and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
 to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
 than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
 or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
 appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
 Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Independent Audit Report to the members of German - Australian **Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited**

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Felsers

Steven Zabeti Partner

Sydney 04 April 2023



Disclaimer

The additional financial data as presented in the detailed statement of comprehensive income is in accordance with the books and records of the German-Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited that have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit for the year ended 31 December 2022. Our statutory audit did not cover all the details of the additional financial data. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on such data and no warranty is given on its accuracy or reliability.

Neither Felsers, nor any member or employee of Felsers undertakes responsibility in any way whatsoever to any person in respect of such data including any errors or omissions however caused.

Jelsens Felsers

Steven Zabeti Partner

Sydney 04 April 2023

German - Australian Chamber of Industry & Commerce Limited DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

	2022	2021
INCOME	\$	\$
Member subscriptions	947,350	526,662
Service fees	1,020,991	708,069
Functions	269,418	88,594
Publications revenue	1,309	9,554
Interest received	1,780	1,364
Other revenue	50,334	100,668
Exchange rate gains	12,077	-
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment		
	2,303,259	1,434,911
GTAI	156,352	149,855
Grants from DIHK	1,380,201	797,659
Total comprehensive income for the year	3,839,812	2,382,425
EXPENSES		
Salaries wages	2,423,158	1,676,506
Auditors remuneration	10,000	10,504
Rental, cleaning and other rental costs	75,271	36,269
Contractors	40,213	35,271
Trade fairs and functions expense	316,842	58,174
Professional fees	32,631	46,983
Travel expenses	194,807	42,543
Service expenses	136,721	29,671
Depreciation expenses	237,293	238,171
Printing and stationary	16,290	19,812
Publications expenses	11,973	4,130
Telephone and internet costs	10,142	9,409
Computer expenses	78,958	64,555
Representation entertainment	12,290	6,181
Motor vehicle expenses	593	-
Sundries	68,666	37,473
Postage and freights expenses	931	1,408
Bank charges	10,813	7,646
Administration expenses	40,378	7,100
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment	92	-
Exchange rate losses	-	22,292
Interest expenses	21,821	32,847
Total expenses	3,739,883	2,386,945
Surplus/(Deficit) Funds	99,929	(4,520)